STSC Members

In order to conduct our meetings correctly, there **must be a physical quorum present at the in-person meetings**, in order to vote in allowance for those members to participate via Zoom.

The in-person meeting will be held at 310 Court Street, Clearwater, FL. Maria Kelly (<u>mkelly@forwardpinellas.org</u>) will need **confirmation from those of you who will be attending in person, so that a quorum can be confirmed.** If you confirm and cannot make it, please reach out to her so that a back-up can be found. Without a quorum, we cannot vote in the Zoom attendees.

If you will be attending by Zoom, here is the Zoom meeting information:

Topic: School Transportation Safety Committee Meeting (STSC) 9:00 am

Time: June 1, 2022 09:00 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88213075771?pwd=M3c3UFVkb29RV0Fzc0s2 NTZ3aFBHZz09

Meeting ID: 882 1307 5771 Passcode: 151998

One tap mobile +1-646-876-9923 88213075771#,,,,*151998# US (New York) +1-301-715-8592 88213075771#,,,,*151998# US (Washington DC)



310 Court Street, 1st Floor Conf. Room Clearwater, FL 33756

THE PLANNING COUNCIL AND METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION FOR PINELLAS COUNTY

FACE MASKS ARE ENCOURAGED BUT NOT REQUIRED

- 1. CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS
- 2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
- 3. SCHOOL DISTRICT RELATED ITEMS
 - 1. School Year End
 - 2. Bus Routes and Driver Staffing
 - 3. Hazardous Walk Routes
- 4. FDOT SCHOOL ZONE REGULATIONS
- 5. FORWARD PINELLAS OUTREACH AND COORDINATION EFFORTS
- 6. OTHER BUSINESS
 - A. Student-Related Crash Analysis
 - B. SPOTLight Emphasis Area Update
 - C. STEPS Program Minutes
 - D. Safe Routes to School
 - E. Request for Future Agenda Topics
- 7. ADJOURNMENT

Next Meeting: October 5, 2022

If you will be attending by Zoom, here is the Zoom meeting information: Topic: School Transportation Safety Committee Meeting (STSC) 9:00 am Time: March 2, 2022 09:00 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88213075771?pwd=M3c3UFVkb29RV0Fzc0s2NTZ3aFBHZz09

Meeting ID: 882 1307 5771 Passcode: 151998 Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should contact the Office of Human Rights, 400 South Fort Harrison Avenue, Suite 300, Clearwater, Florida 33756; [(727) 464-4062 (V/TDD)] at least three days prior to the meeting.

Appeals: Certain public meetings result in actions taken by the public board, commission or agency that may be appealed; in such case persons are advised that, if they decide to appeal any decision made at a public meeting/hearing, they will need a record of the proceedings, and, for such purposes, they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Forward Pinellas is committed to making our documents accessible to all audiences If you have accessibility concerns, please contact <u>aelmore@forwardpinellas.org</u> or call 727-464-4880. Visit <u>https://forwardpinellas.org/legal/website-accessibility-statement/</u> for more information.



<u>SUMMARY</u>

The meeting summary for the March 2, 2022, meeting is attached for review and approval.

ATTACHMENT(S): STSC Meeting Summary – March 2, 2022

ACTION: Approval of Meeting Summary

SUMMARY OF SCHOOL TRANSPORTATION SAFETY COMMITTEE VIRTUAL WORKSHOP OF MARCH 2, 2022

The virtual workshop was held on Wednesday, March 2, 2022, at 9:00 a.m., via Zoom platform. Those in attendance were:

Members Present:

Bill Dudley, Chair Carol Cook, Vice-Chair Matt Atwell Mark Bunker Joseph Camera Dave Eggers Jeff Gow Cliff Merz Doug Mullis - Zoom Keith Sabiel Joshua Shulman

Members Absent:

John Carroll Roger Edelman Jacob Karr Cookie Kennedy Scott Swearengen Marshall Touchton Lisa Wheeler-Bowman

Others Present:

Howard Miller David Chase Michelle Sterling - Zoom Autumn Westerman - Zoom Casey Morse Gina Harvey – Zoom Doug Williams - Zoom Chelsea Favero Sandra Knoebel Maria Kelly Pinellas County School Board Pinellas County School Board Pinellas County School Board/Transportation Councilmember, City of Clearwater Pinellas County Public Schools Commissioner Pinellas County Commissioner, City of Dunedin Commissioner, City of Safety Harbor Citizen Representative Councilmember, City of Pinellas Park PSTA Representative

Commissioner, City of Largo Councilmember, City of Seminole Commissioner, City of Tarpon Springs Beaches Representative, Mayor Indian Rocks Beach Pinellas County Long Range Planning Pinellas County School Board Councilmember, City of St. Petersburg

Pinellas County Sheriff's Office City of Pinellas Park Bay Care – Kids Wellness and Safety Center Pinellas County Public Schools Pinellas County Public Works Traffic Pinellas County Public Works Traffic Guest Forward Pinellas Staff Forward Pinellas Staff Forward Pinellas Staff

1. CALL TO ORDER

Bill Dudley, Chair, Pinellas County School Board, called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. and asked attendees to introduce themselves. At this time, Chair Dudley read a statement regarding allowing committee members present to make a motion to allow those members participating by Zoom (all names identified above) to participate and vote due to extenuating circumstances existing that make it impossible for some committee members to attend in person. A motion was made by Commissioner Jeff Gow that due to Covid-19, extenuating circumstances exist that prevent members from joining in person. Therefore, they will be allowed to participate and vote by phone since a quorum is represented in person. This was seconded by Vice Chair Carol Cook and passed with a unanimous vote.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The deferred minutes for March 3rd, June 2nd, & October 6th, 2021, were approved with no corrections.

3. SCHOOLBOARD RELATED ITEMS: Motorists Passing Stopped School Buses

Mr. Joseph Camera, Pinellas County Schools, shared that there are a number of repeat offenses, especially around 4th Street and 112th Avenue N, where motorists do not stop for the school buses when the stop arm is out. Additional incidents happen on Seminole Boulevard, especially in the afternoon when motorists run right though the bus stop arm. The School District has been working with bus drivers to make sure they are doing the stops correctly with plenty of notice to motorists.

Sandra Knoebel, Forward Pinellas staff shared that the CTST and STEPS committee met recently to discuss how COVID-19 has affected school drop-offs and pick-ups and discuss options to make this process easier.

Casey Morse, Pinellas County Public Works Traffic, shared that one of the most effective ways to reach the public with educational information is through social media. It is important to spread the word about traffic safety, school bus stopping rules, the need for bus drivers and how to continue to keep children safe while getting on the bus. Social media can provide so many different outlets to get the word out. Another effective way is television during the news casts. Chuck Henson, a Bay News 9 Reporter/Anchor, is a strong advocate for Pinellas County and child safety, bike and pedestrian safety and crossing school guards' safety. Ms. Morse is seeking to get approval from the committee to reach out to and address these concerns using the different social media platforms and Bay News 9. Also available to assist the School District, the Sheriff's Office and the Police Departments are the electronic messaging boards through Pinellas County Public Works. These could be placed at different locations with selective messages.

Commissioner Eggers noted that an increase in enforcement needs to be implemented in those areas where repeated offences occur in regard to motorists running the school bus stop arm. He also inquired as to the status of the 15 mph school zone speed, if all the school zones have been equipped with the materials needed to enforce this, and if all of the school zones consistent. Ms. Morse shared that FDOT did change their school zone regulations and there are still a few more years remaining to implement the consistency requirements. FDOT has offered to supply all of the equipment, however none of the cities has seen much equipment to date. Some cities have already made the changes to the

school zones in their districts to enforce the 15 mph speed when the lights are flashing, however, to go through all the school zones in Pinellas County is quite an extensive undertaking because in the requirement documents, public, private and charter schools must also be upgraded. Public Works has the equipment, and they are currently reviewing each school. As they continue their review, they encounter other school issues and must address all the issues identified as each school is evaluated. They have a list of schools they are currently working on and a list of schools yet to be addressed.

4. SCHOOL ZONE ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES

Deputy Howard Miller, Pinellas County Sheriff's Office, was invited to speak with the committee regarding speeding in school zones. He began with sharing his statistics from the last year, 270 speeding citations were issued in a school zone on Tampa and 19th Streets alone, near Palm Harbor Middle School. Deputy Miller also monitors school bus stops. On Harn and Belcher near Oak Grove Elementary, over 116 stopped school bus tickets were issued to motorists who failed to stop for the school bus stop arm. His suggestion is to activate strobe lights in and around the school zone signs. He has witnessed people stopping for the school buses that have the strobe lights on top that flash when they are stopped. He also suggested that LED lights could be placed on the stop arm to increase visibility. Anything to catch the attention of the drivers to remind them to stop or slow down. Another suggestion was to put yellow school zone stripes on the "end of school zone" signs to help motorists to know they are at the end of the school zone.

Chelsea Favero, Forward Pinellas staff suggested inviting FDOT to come to the next meeting to talk about school zone equipment and school zone safety.

Dunedin Commissioner Jeff Gow suggested the idea of Complete Streets treatments being implemented in the school zone areas which will force drivers to slow down, making these areas more multimodal and not as car centric, in an effort to give drivers a reason to change their behavior.

Ms. Favero asked members if they were aware of the legislation just passed to allow speed enforcement cameras in school zones.

Commissioner Eggers addressed the prior media question, inquiring what is needed to move forward with getting the message out. Carol Cook, School Board member suggested getting in touch with Beth Herendeen <u>Herendeene@pcsb.org</u>. Commissioner Eggers also requested to elevate this to the Forward Pinellas Board and have a subject matter conversation with FDOT and the Board, in the near future.

5. BAYCARE KIDS' WELLNESS AND SAFETY CENTER

Michelle Sterling with the BayCare Wellness and Safety Center addressed the committee, sharing information about the health and well-being of children and their families. The BayCare Wellness and Safety Center has been around for 30 years educating children and schools, resource centers on injury prevention for children. Their job, out in the community, is to help keep children safe by focusing on bike and pedestrian safety. They teach children how to be safe pedestrians, how to be safe bicyclists, how to look out for themselves and to pay attention to their own safety. The Center staff go out to the schools with programs that align with the school's curriculum, with grade specific educational practices. They provide

helmets to children without helmets. They also train PE teachers to be helmet fitters. Along with bike safety, they also provide educational programs for injury prevention, the importance of being active, good nutrition and water safety. Questions were taken and appropriately answered.

6. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Hazardous Walking Conditions Update

The Hazardous Walking Conditions review is beginning in the next few months. The routes are being analyzed based on the traffic counts in March and April, stats for the number of schools and funding for buses. The state has changed the rules to determine what is considered 'hazardous,' reducing the number of areas considered to have hazardous conditions, and therefore ineligible for state funding for busing. Funds have been set aside to repair sidewalks and other hazardous conditions at the County level so improvements may be coming.

B. <u>Pinellas SPOTlight Emphasis Areas Update</u>

Regarding the SPOTLight emphasis areas, Beach Access there is a subcommittee looking into Waterborne Transportation, meeting regularly over the last year to identify potential opportunities for additional waterborne transportation. For US 19, the Curlew Interchange will be under construction within the next several months to include a pedestrian underpass at Republic Drive and a pedestrian overpass at Northside Drive. For the Innovations in Employment and Job Access, Forward Pinellas is currently working with a consultant on a Target Employment Industrial Land study to identify the right mix of industrial vs residential land uses.

C. <u>STEPS Program</u>

Minutes and Agendas were provided in the agenda packets.

D. Safe Routes to School

Information on upcoming events for SRTS is provided in the agenda packets. There are many funding opportunities through Safe the Routes to School program.

E. <u>Requests for Future Agenda Topics</u>

Social Media Presence – Chuck Henson FDOT to share information on school zone updates

F. <u>Comments</u>

When the agencies are prepared to make a safety video, it was requested that the STSC be engaged so that the district and the various local governments can engage each of their media liaisons to share the information.

A suggestion was made to invite the PCCPTA president, Christina Garcia to the next meeting. Contact information for Ms. Garcia is <u>president@pccpta.org</u>

7. ADJOURNMENT

The Committee adjourned at 10:39 am. The next meeting will be held on June 1, 2022.

<u>School Transportation Safety Committee – June 1, 2022</u> 3. School District Related Items



SUMMARY

A representative from the Pinellas County School District will lead a discussion on transportation matters related to school children. The discussion will include year-end school transportation changes, concerns with cars passing stopped school buses, statistics on students being bused and driver impacts, and an overview of how the district is handling hazardous walking routes.

ATTACHMENT(S): None

ACTION: None Required, Informational Item Only



SUMMARY

School zones throughout the state of Florida are regulated by the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT). FDOT sets the standards for what speed limits may be set, how the roadway can be marked within a school zone and where any signage may be located. However, the local governments do have some latitude when establishing their school zones, as long as the school zones adhere to FDOT standards. A representative from FDOT will provide an overview of the state laws governing school zones and to what extent local governments can implement these zones within their jurisdictions.

ATTACHMENT(S): None

ACTION: None Required, Informational Item Only



SUMMARY

Forward Pinellas maintains a robust outreach program, working with a variety of local, regional and state partners to educate the public on matters of land use and transportation, while bringing awareness of the ways in which the agency can serve the communities of Pinellas County.

This year alone, Forward Pinellas has partnered with the City of Gulfport for the annual Bike Your City event, held a School Crossing Guard Appreciation Day event with the police departments of both Clearwater and St. Petersburg, and participated in a Trail Safety Day with the City of Dunedin. In addition, agency staff attended the Pinellas County School District's inservice day to promote the 'City by Design' planning curriculum to middle and high school social studies teachers.

Forward Pinellas staff will provide an overview of some of the activities that the agency has participated in that served to benefit school children and discuss future opportunities to strengthen that engagement.

ATTACHMENT(S): None

ACTION: None Required, Informational Item Only



6. A- E Other Business

A. Student-Related Crash Analysis

Forward Pinellas staff has begun an analysis of serious crashes potentially involving students in Pinellas County. Staff intends to continue this analysis in the coming months, with the goal of identifying mitigating solutions, based on the results of the analysis. As the analysis progresses, staff will continue to brief the committee on results and next steps.

B. Pinellas SPOTlight Emphasis Areas Update

Forward Pinellas staff will provide a brief update on the status of activities related to the three SPOTlight emphasis areas.

C. STEPS Program – Minutes

The School Transportation and Enhanced Pedestrian Safety (STEPS) Committee is facilitated by the Pinellas County School Board and was created as a forum to discuss and address traffic safety issues around Pinellas County Schools. The STEPS committee consists of technical planning/engineering staff from the local governments and agencies throughout the County. Attached are meeting summaries and agendas from their meetings since the last STSC.

ATTACHMENT(S):

- February 2022 STEPS Minutes
- March 2022 No STEPS Meeting
- April 2022 STEPS Minutes
- May 2022 STEPS Minutes
- Bell Schedule for 2022/23

D. Safe Routes to School

Florida's Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Program works to improve the safety of children walking or bicycling to and from school through infrastructure improvements, enforcement activity, and safety education. The link below provides recent information regarding SRTS initiatives and activities: <u>https://www.saferoutespartnership.org/</u>

E. <u>Request for Future Agenda Topics</u>

The STSC members may discuss any suggestions for future agenda topics.

STEPS Meeting Minutes for February 2022

School Transportation & Enhanced Pedestrian Safety Committee Wednesday, February 16, 2022 10:30 a.m. – 11: 30 a.m. WPSC or on Microsoft Teams

I. INTRODUCTIONS-ATTENDANCE

Mahshid Arasteh, Matt Atwell, Joe Camera, Russell Ferlita, Marvin Jefferson, Sandra Knoebel, Larry Kolbicka, James Long, Chris Mantzanas, Melissa Mehling, Casey Morse, Dawn Pecora, Jerry Reynolds, Norm Runkles, Susan Sams, Hailey Sequeira, Marshal Touchton, Michael Ulbrich, Jeff Wasilewski, Autumn Westermann.

II. APPROVAL OF January 19, 2021 Meeting Minute

Norm Runkles made a motion to approve the November minutes. Jeff Wasilewski seconded.

III. <u>NEW GENERAL BUSINESS</u>

Pavement marking maintenance – Joe Camera/Melissa Mehling

refreshing of the crosswalk lines at 38th Ave N @ 37th St N. He would also like to see if the area in front of the crosswalks could be marked with do not block crosswalk/intersection signs.

Summer Bridge sites and hours will be shared the week of February 28th. The City Supervisors have concerns about staffing these sites. They are already down to a limited amount of guards, doubling and tripling their posts. To help offset this struggle, the PCSO is currently using deputies to cover 20 hours a day. We will add Crossing Guard shortages to our agenda for the month of April 2022.

Crossing Signals - Jurisdiction are responsible for changing their signal times for Spring Break, March 14-18.

IV. COMMITTEE BUSINESS/UPDATES

Next month's meeting will be cancelled due to it falling during our Spring Break. I will be sending out Summer Bridge information as so as I receive it.

V. OLD GENERAL BUSINESS

VI. <u>NEXT MEETING/ADJOURNED</u>

*** April 20, 2022 at WPSC located at 11111 Belcher Road South, Largo

or "Microsoft TEAMS" at 10:30a.m.***

All STEPS meetings are scheduled for the 3rd Wednesday of the month

STEPS Meeting Agenda for April 2022

School Transportation & Enhanced Pedestrian Safety Committee Wednesday, April 20, 2022 10:30 a.m. – 11: 30 a.m. WPSC or on Microsoft Teams

INTRODUCTIONS-ATTENDANCE Matt Atwell, Keon Boozar, Joe Camera, Andy Hill, Judy Michance, Marvin Jefferson, Tim Jacobson, Sandra Knoebel, James Long, Chris Manzanas, Melissa Mehling, Casey Morse, Dawn Pecora, Susan Sams, Hailey Sequeira, Michael Ulbrich, Jeff Wasilewski, Autumn Westermann.

I. APPROVAL OF February 16, 2021 Meeting Minute

Approved

II. <u>NEW GENERAL BUSINESS</u>

Early release on May 26th – two hours early. Last day with students will be an early release by 2 hours for all grade levels. Please adjust your flashing lights accordingly.

Summer Bridge sites and hours - The schedule with the staggered times was sent out to all STEPS committee members.

*****UPDATE on BELL TIMES***** Since the meeting, a new proposed time change of 12 schools for the 2022-2023 school year (due to transportation issues) is going to the Board for approval on 4/26/2022. I have included the new bell times with these minutes and will follow up with an email to the STEPS Committee to confirm, once they are approved.

Pinellas Park Crossing Guard Supervisor, Lawrence Kolbicka was able to lobby to get the crossing guard pay from \$13 per hour to over \$16!! Pinellas Park also produced a video to share on Facebook. We were unable to watch this video due to technical issues, but plan to view it during the next meeting. See link below for video. https://link.zixcentral.com/u/ed2d72a3/BPKtsq7A7BGoZcYIXNGfSw?u=http s%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fpinellasparkpd

Ozona ES at the Pinellas Trail – Flashing lights will be installed to warn trail users of a school crosswalk ahead.

Anona ES car loop traffic pattern – Casey Morse and Hailey Sequeira, LPD are working together on improving the traffic in the car line. Cars are parked on the side of the road and making the roadway deteriorate.

Highland Lakes Elementary School (HLES) Crossing - We have had multiple (10-15) requests for a crossing guard at the entrance to HLES. A camera was installed to monitor the behaviors /issues. During the summer they will be installing a school zone signage and requesting to add a crossing guard.

Mildred Helms school zone request is being investigated by Casey Morse and Hailey Sequeira from LPD. They are trying to lower the speed of drivers near the school.

 III.
 COMMITTEE BUSINESS/UPDATES

 Crash Data is attached with the minutes.

IV. OLD GENERAL BUSINESS

V. <u>NEXT MEETING/ADJOURNED</u>

*** May 18, 2022 at WPSC located at 11111 Belcher Road South, Largo or "Microsoft TEAMS" at 10:30a.m.*** All STEPS meetings are scheduled for the 3rd Wednesday of the month

STEPS Meeting Agenda for May 2022

School Transportation & Enhanced Pedestrian Safety Committee Wednesday, May 18, 2022 10:30 a.m. – 11: 30 a.m. WPSC or on Microsoft Teams

I. INTRODUCTIONS-ATTENDANCE

Matt Atwell, Alexis Boback, Joe Camera, Andy Hill, Russell Ferlita, Marvin Jefferson, Tim Jacobson, Marvin Jefferson, Sandra Knoebel, James Long, Melissa Mehling, Judy Michaud, Casey Morse, Dawn Pecora, Norm Runkles, James Ryan, Susan Sams, Hailey Sequeira, Marshal Touchton, Michael Ulbrich, Jeff Wasilewski, Autumn Westermann, Dr. Christie Wilson and Litianyu Zhu.

II. APPROVAL OF April 20, 2021 Meeting Minute

Matt Atwell approved, Sandra Kneobel second.

III. <u>NEW GENERAL BUSINESS</u>

Orange Grove ES - traveling to school issues. Complaint regarding the travels from 105th Lane to the school. The City of Seminole did an evaluation and found it is marked appropriately and safe. Sidewalks along 66th, safe to cross at all crossings. The walkers are to use the designated cross walks.

Pinellas Park Crossing Guards recruitment video

https://link.zixcentral.com/u/ed2d72a3/BPKtsq7A7BGoZcYIXNGfSw?u=https%3A%2F %2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fpinellasparkpd

Seminole Construction on 131st Street and 86th Ave – is coming to an end!! It will be important to work with the school and parents to understand which cross walks to use. Maps and support will be very helpful. PCSO plans to be present during the opening of school.

Summer Bridge Crossing Guard – time and locations are due for PCSB website. Summer Bridge runs from June $6 - 30^{\text{th}}$.

Safe Routes to School – funding for Mildred Helms. Mr James Ryan is looking into improving a multipath along Clearwater-Largo Road for a safer way to get to Mildred Helms Elementary. He would appreciate any information or helpful tips if you have already been involved with SRTS funding.

IV. <u>COMMITTEE BUSINESS/UPDATES</u>

Crash Data – see attached

V. OLD GENERAL BUSINESS

VI. <u>NEXT MEETING/ADJOURNED</u>

*** June 15, 2022 at WPSC located at 11111 Belcher Road South, Largo

or "Microsoft TEAMS" at 10:30a.m.***

All STEPS meetings are scheduled for the 3rd Wednesday of the month

Pinellas County Schools 2022-2023 Bell Times

First Tier Schools		Second Tier Schools			Third Tier Schools
7:10AM - 1:55PM	7:35AM - 1:45PM	8:45AM - 2:55PM	8:45AM - 2:55PM	8:30AM - 3:15PM	9:40AM - 4:10PM
BOCA CIEGA HS	CROSS BAYOU ES	ANONA ES	MCMULLEN-BOOTH ES	CAMPBELL PARK ES	AZALEA MS
HOLLINS HS	SHORE ACRES ES	AZALEA ES	MILDRED HELMS ES	FAIRMOUNT PARK ES	BAY POINT MS
GIBBS HS	WALSINGHAM ES	BARDMOOR ES	MOUNT VERNON ES	GULFPORT MONTESSORI ES	CARWISE MS
LAKEWOOD HS	7:25AM - 1:25PM	BAUDER ES	NEW HEIGHTS ES	LAKEWOOD ES	DUNEDIN HIGHLAND MS
7:25AM - 1:55PM	CALVIN HUNSINGER	BAY POINT ES	NORTH SHORE ES	MAXIMO ES	EAST LAKE MS
BAYSIDE HS	RICHARD L. SANDERS	BEAR CREEK ES	NORTHWEST ES	MELROSE ES	JOHN HOPKINS MS
CLEARWATER HS	7:15AM - 1:45PM	BELCHER ES	OAKHURST ES	SANDY LANE ES	LARGO MS
COUNTRYSIDE HS	DISSTON ACADEMY	BELLEAIR ES	OLDSMAR ES	8:45AM - 3:25PM	MEADOWLAWN MS
DUNEDIN HS	7:10AM - 1:30PM	BLANTON ES	ORANGE GROVE ES	MIDTOWN ACADEMY	MORGAN FITZGERALD MS
EAST LAKE HS	PINELLAS GULF COAST ACADEMY	BROOKER CREEK ES	OZONA ES	9:25AM - 3:35PM	OAK GROVE MS
LARGO HS	7:35AM - 2:05PM	CHI CHI RODRIGUEZ ACADEMY	PINELLAS CENTRAL ES	JAMES B. SANDERLIN K-8	OSCEOLA MS
LEALMAN INNOVATION ACADEMY	RICHARD O. JACOBSON TECH HS	CURLEW CREEK ES	PINELLAS PARK ES	9:15AM - 3:25PM	PALM HARBOR MS
NORTHEAST HS		CYPRESS WOODS ES	PLUMB ES	PERKINS ES	PINELLAS PARK MS
OSCEOLA FUNDAMENTAL HS		DOUGLAS L. JAMERSON ES	PONCE DE LEON ES	9:15AM - 3:45PM	PINELLAS SECONDARY SCHOOL
PALM HARBOR UNIVERSITY HS		DUNEDIN ES	RAWLINGS (MARJORIE) ES	CLEARWATER INTERMEDIATE	SAFETY HARBOR MS
PINELLAS PARK HS		EISENHOWER ES	RIDGECREST ES	Fundamental Schools- No Transportation	SEMINOLE MS
SEMINOLE HS		ELISA NELSON ES	SAFETY HARBOR ES	7:45AM - 1:55PM	TARPON SPRINGS MS
ST. PETERSBURG HS		FOREST LAKES ES	SAN JOSE ES	MADEIRA BEACH FUND ES	THURGOOD MARSHALL FUND MS
TARPON SPRINGS HS		FRONTIER ES	SAWGRASS LAKE ES	7:45AM - 2:15PM	TYRONE MS
		FUGUITT ES	SEMINOLE ES	MADEIRA BEACH FUND MS	
		GARRISON-JONES ES	SEVENTY-FOURTH ST ES	8:00AM - 2:10PM	
		GULF BEACHES ES	SKYCREST ES	CURTIS FUNDAMENTAL	
		HIGHLAND LAKES ES	SKYVIEW ES	8:05AM - 2:15PM	
		HIGH POINT ES	SOUTHERN OAK ES	TARPON SPRINGS FUNDAMENTAL	
		JOHN M. SEXTON ES	STARKEY ES	8:15AM - 2:25PM	
		KINGS HIGHWAY ES	SUNSET HILLS ES	BAY VISTA FUNDAMENTAL	EXCEPTIONAL EDUCATION CENTERS
		LAKE ST. GEORGE ES	SUTHERLAND ES	8:15AM - 2:45PM	10:00AM - 4:00PM
		LEALMAN AVENUE ES	TARPON SPRINGS ES	CLEARWATER FUNDAMENTAL	NINA HARRIS
		LEILA G. DAVIS ES	WESTGATE ES	8:30AM - 2:40PM	PAUL B. STEPHENS
		LYNCH ES	WOODLAWN ES	LAKEVIEW FUNDAMENTAL	
				PASADENA FUNDAMENTAL	